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JOYCE MUNIE, P.E.

EDWN C. BAKOWEKI ,

KENNETH W LI SS
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Pr oponent

Pr oponent

Pr oponent
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transcript.)
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Joyce Munie, P.E.
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PROCEEDI NGS
(Cct ober 27, 1997; 10:10 a.m)

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  Good nor ni ng.
My nane is Marie Tipsord, and | have been appointed
by the Board to serve as Hearing Oficer in this
proceeding entitled, In the Matter of Municipa
Solid Waste Landfill Rules: Anendnents to 35
II'linois Admi nistrative Code 811, 813 and 848. The
Docket Number is R98-09.

To ny right is Dr. Tanner Grard, one of
the Board Menmbers assigned to this matter. Also
present is Board Chairman, Caire A Manning, who
is also assigned to this matter. Wth ne is John
Knittle, to Dr. Grard s right, representing M.

Yi. To ny left is Anand Rao, from our Technica
Unit.

This is the first hearing of this
proceedi ng which was filed on August 11, 1997, as a
joint proposal by the Illinois Environnenta
Protecti on Agency and the National Solid Waste
Managenment Association. Along with the proposal
t he proponents filed a notion asking the Board to
l[imt the scope of this proceeding. On August

21st, 1997, the Board accepted the proponents
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proposal, and | will quote fromthat order. The
Board notes both the proponents' desire to proceed
with this rul emaking in an expeditious manner and

t hat the expansion of the scope of the proposal to
i ncl ude other regulatory quote, w sh list, unquote,
could unduly delay the Board's deliberation
However, the Board will not [imt the discussion of
the regulatory alternative proposed or public
testinmony or comment period concerning subject
matters addressed by this proposal. Therefore, at
this time the Board agrees to linmt the scope of
this proceeding in that the Board will not
entertain requests fromother parties to expand the
list of sections proposed for anendnent. The Board
wi |l accept commrents on the proposed | anguage for

t he section opened in the proposal including any
potential suggestions regarding alternatives, close
quot e.

Therefore, the Board limted the scope of
this proceeding. | will Iimt the scope of the
hearing consistent with the Board' s order

At the back of the roomthere are sign-up
sheets for both the notice and the service lists as

wel |l as current copies of both the notice and
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service lists. If you wish to be on the service
l[ist you will receive all pleadings and all
prefiled testinony in the proceeding. If you wi sh
to be on the notice list you will receive all Board
and Hearing O ficer orders in the rulemaking. If
you have any question about which list you wish to
be pl aced on, please see ne at a break.

The Board received prefiled testinony
fromthe proponents and we will begin with the
proponent's testinmony. Once we have proceeded
t hrough the testinmny we will have sunmaries of the
testinmony and mark the testinony as it is read. W
will allow questions for the specific testinony and
the specific testifier.

W will then have a panel discussion and
all ow for questions to be addressed to the panel as
a whole. Once we concluded all the prefiled
testinmony, if there is anyone here who may wi sh to
testify today, if we have time we will try to allow
that. At the close of today's hearing, we wll
determ ne the prefiling testinony days for the
hearing to be held on Novenber 19th in Chicago.

At this tinme, is there anything you woul d

like to add, Dr. Grard?

KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY
Belleville, Illinois



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: Yes, | would just
like to add that on behalf of the Board we wel cone
everyone here to this hearing this nmorning. |
woul d also like to express the Board' s appreciation
to the joint proponents for all the hard work
evidenced in this proposal which has conme before
us, and we look forward to a fair and efficient
rul emaki ng process. Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  Thank you.

Chai r man Manni ng?

BOARD CHAI RVAN MANNI NG Thank you for
bringing this forward as a joint proposal. It is
nice to see a joint proposal

HEARI NG OFFI CER TIPSORD: At this tine |
will turn to the proponents. Wuld either of you
like to make an opening statenent?

MR, VAN NESS: Madam Hearing O ficer, ny
nane is Phillip Van Ness. | amthe attorney for
t he NSWVA, one of the proponents today.

As per your direction a few nonments ago,
we have one witness, M. Thomas A, Hilbert, who
has, as you nentioned, previously filed testinony.
For the record, | would note that a copy of his

prefiled testinony is also avail able at the back of
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the room as per Pollution Control Board rules.

I have no particular coment. | think we
woul d be better served and the Board's tinme better
served by opening the floor to the questions that
t he Board Menbers thensel ves may have or you, Madam
Hearing Oficer, may have as well as any nenbers of
t he public.

Wthout further ado, | guess | would be
entering M. Thomas A. Hilbert, and we wll
subsequently nmove that his testinony, as prefiled,
be admtted as is read.

HEARI NG OFFI CER Tl PSORD: Before we do
that, Ms. Dyer, did you have an openi ng statenent,
or would you like to reserve that until
afterwar ds?

M5. DYER My opening statement will be
very brief, as was M. Van Ness', and | think I
will reserve it until after M. Hilbert responds to
guesti ons.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  Ckay. At this
time would you swear in M. Hilbert.

(Wher eupon the wi tness was
sworn by the Notary Public.)

M. TIPSORD: Al right. Go ahead.
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MR, VAN NESS: | guess | would say at
this point that our intention is to ask no
guestions of him and not ask himto sumrarize his
testinmony unless that be the will of the Board.
The statenent has been prefiled for a couple of
weeks now. If you would like for himto sumrari ze
his testinmony, he can do so briefly, or if you
prefer to pass on that and nove on, we wll take
our direction fromyou, Madam Hearing O ficer.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  Ckay. W will
just go ahead and allow you to tender his testinony
and proceed with the Agency and then have the panel
guesti oni ng.

MR, VAN NESS: Thank you. Then that
woul d be our sumtotal testinony for the present.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Ckay. So you
would like to offer his testinony as if read as
Exhi bit Nunmber 1?2

MR VAN NESS: That's fi ne.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  Ckay. W will
mark it as an exhibit and then we will attach it.

MR, VAN NESS: All right. Do you want to
mark that as NSWVA or proponents --

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Wl I, let's go

KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY
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wi t h proponents.

MR, VAN NESS: Ckay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  And t hen t hat
will be distinguished -- if that is okay with the
Agency, that will be distinguishable and then if
ei ther of you have separate exhibits that you want
to tender later on. W will assume the testinony
is joint fromthe proponents. |Is that okay?

MS. DYER  Yes.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Do you have a
copy with you to hand to the court reporter?

MR VAN NESS: Yes, | will hand her a
copy.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Ckay. | think
the pleasure of the Board is to wait until the
panel discussion to direct our questions. | don't
t hi nk we have anyt hing specific.

So we will proceed with you, Ms. Dyer.

M5. DYER  Good norning. M nane is Judy
Dyer. | amhere today on behalf of the Illinois
Envi ronnental Protection Agency. Wth ne, our
Agency witnesses today. On ny left is Ken Liss and
Ed Bakowski. On ny right is Joyce Minie.

| don't have very nuch to say as an

10
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opening statement. | would just like to nove on to
offer the testinonies of Ed Bakowski and Kenneth

Li ss and Joyce Minie and have thementered into the
record as if read. | have a copy.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TIPSORD: W will mark Ed
Bakowski's testinmony as Exhibit Nunmber 2.

MR VAN NESS: Ed Bakowski as Nunber 27?

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  Yes, as Nunber
2. Then Kenneth Liss as Nunber 3 and Joyce Minie
as Number 4.

Ms. Dyer, did any of your testifiers w sh
to summarize in any way or do you want to just
proceed to questioni ng?

M5. DYER If it is all right with the
Board, we will just proceed to the questioning.
woul d also like to nmention that there are
addi ti onal copies of our testinony, of the Agency's
testinmony in the back

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Al l right.
Wul d the court reporter please swear in the
Wi t nesses.

(Wher eupon wi t nesses Ed
Bakowski , Kenneth Liss and

Joyce Munie were sworn by the

11
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Not ary Public.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Ckay. That
being the case, we will proceed to questions of the
panel . Although, | believe | have a specific
guestion of M. Liss. Let me check sonething.

| have a specific question for M. Liss
regardi ng your testinony. On page three of your
prefiled testinony, you tal k about a potenti al
del ay of 90 days before detection is not
significant. It is the first actual paragraph
t here.

MR LISS: ay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: When you say a
potential delay of 90 days before detection is not
significant, you nmean environnental ly not
significant? The whol e paragraph there, | guess,
should clarify for the record is tal king about the
time -- the difference between semi annual and
quarterly reporting of groundwater nonitoring
results, | believe, and if the interval between --
from90 to 180 days would not result in a
significant environnental effect.

MR, LISS: Considering the rate -- in the

paragraph |I tried to bring out the -- specifically,

12
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| said on the order of 20 to 30 feet per year that
woul d be a very high rate of groundwater novenent,
in considering that -- even that rate of novenent,
if the detection, the worse case scenari o being
that if this facility could go to sem annua

nmoni toring, there would be an additional 90 day

i nterval before there would be sone sanplings and
statistical nmethods to evaluate, and it woul d not
be significant in travel tinmne.

VWhat | didn't put in there, and | can
clarify now, is |looking at the well spacing that we
have any anal ytical capabilities where we are
basically down to the one part per billion for al
organics, very close to five to ten nost of the
inorganics, it would not be significant in travel
time.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  Thank you.

Al right M. Hilbert, in your testinony
on page 3, under Subpart I1l, substantive features
of this proposal, you refer to 811 -- on point
nunber two you refer to 811.309 (e).

MR HI LBERT: Yes, excuse ne. That's
i ncorrect.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: That shoul d be

13
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(9)?
MR H LBERT: It should read (g)(1).

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: G eat. Thank
you. Gkay. | think that's all | have for the
specific testifiers.

Does anyone havi ng anything else for the
specific testifiers?

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: | have one
guestion. M question goes to Part 811.321, if you
want to turn to that. |In fact, 811.321(b)(4). It
is on page 58 of the proposal

Under this subsection we tal k about
having a CQA officer certifying or recertifying
certain criteria, and the CQA officer is defined in
811. 502, which is one of the sections which is not
open. So, first of all, | think we need to at
| east discuss the definition of what a CQA officer
is to get into the record of this proceeding.

Secondly, we need sonething in the record
here about why the CQA officer is the appropriate
person to do this kind of certification, so that at
| east we get a discussion on the record. If you
woul d I'ike to discuss that today that would be fine

or otherw se you can put it in the coments and

14
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submt that before the next hearing. Watever your
pl easure is at this point in tine.

M5. DYER  Joyce Munie can respond to
t hat questi on.

M5. MUNTE: First, we would like to
define the CQA officer today, just to get it into
the testi nony. However, as far as why the CQA
officer is the appropriate person to make this
certification, we would like to do that in witten
response, if you don't mnd

BOARD MEMBER G RARD:  That is fine.
Thank you.

MS. MUNIE: The CQA officer hinself or
herself is defined in Section 811.502 and under
subsection (b) it tal ks about the duties and
qualifications of the CQA officer. Under (b)(1)
the CQA officer shall supervise and be responsible
for all inspections, testing, and other activities
required to be inplenented as part of the CQA
program under the subpart, and (b)(2) requires that
the CQA officer shall be a professional engineer

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: Thank you. Wat
does the acronym CQA stand for?

M5. MUNIE: Construction quality

15

KEEFE REPORTI NG COVPANY
Belleville, Illinois



10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

assurance
BOARD MEMBER G RARD: Thank you. That's
all 1 have.
MR RAO | have a few questions. Sone

of themare clarification questions and sone

substantive. Under 811.309, Subsection (d)(6), the

proposed anendnent requires one day's worth of
| eachat e storage capacity plus nanagenent of
| eachat e t hrough di sposal of treatnent.

Does this alternative provide the sane
margi n of safety equivalent to the existing
regul ati ons which requires five days of storage?

If so, is it envisioned that the
alternative neans of |eachate managenent will be
available at all times to deal with any
conti ngency, such as breakdown of one of the
options?

M5. MUNIE: Under this section, the
proposed change, we woul d expect it to be
equi val ent protection because of the two
alternatives for |eachate managenent on top of the
one day's worth of storage. Assunming that one of
your options woul d breakdown, you have the second

one to deal with.

16
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Ceneral ly, these | eachat e managenent
options are things that you know are going to go
down because you are doing routine naintenance on
them Under routine maintenance you have a second
backup to deal with the | eachate that has
accunul ated during that day. |If sonething
cat astrophi c happens, you woul d have one day's
worth of storage on site to store the |eachate as
you dealt with the catastrophic problem be it
everyt hing breaki ng down all at once.

MR. RAO These two alternative neans of
| eachat e managenent that shoul d be avail able, so
woul d that be part of the permit, you know, to have
denonstrated that these options are available to
t hen®?

M5. MUINIE: dearly, that woul d be part
of the permt application, that they would have to
denonstrate that they have these two options. And
it would be a requirenment that if they knew
somet hi ng was going to happen to one of these
options it would require a permit nodification to
make avail able a second option for them

Al so, | want to point out that both of

t hese | eachate options for managenment mnust be able

17
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to manage all of the | eachate that should be
generated in that one day. It can't just manage
hal f the leachate. It has to be able to nanage
everything that they expect to encounter in that
one day.

MR, RAO And when you tal k about one
day's storage, it is the nmaxi mum | eachate
generation, right, that is used to recommend the
one day storage capacity?

M5. MUNLE:  Yes.

MR RAO Ckay. In the sane Section,
under Subsection (g)(1) the proposed anendnment to
require |l eachate to be characterized on the basis
of individual nmonitoring locations within a
di sposal unit rather than treating the unit as a
whol e, can you pl ease explain how the | eachate
characteristics at each nmonitoring location will be
used to evaluate the performance of the unit as a
whol e?

M5. MUNTE: Currently, the way the
Section reads, it requires that |eachate be
nonitored from each individual unit, and the unit
could be up to 200 acres in an area. \Wereas this

proposal establishes | eachate nonitoring |ocations

18
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which within that specific unit which is a defined
area. So it would allow us to nonitor, say, the
south end and the north half, the east side and the
west side. It would allow us to nonitor nore than
one | ocation within each unit.

MR, RAO Froma treatnent standpoint,
would it be nore useful to have | eachate quality
data representative of the |eachate fromthe unit
as a whole or do you feel that the individua
monitoring locations is a better way to do that?

M5. MUNIE: Fromthe treatnent
standpoint, it would be better to understand what
the | eachate constituents are as a whole. However,
fromthe groundwater nonitoring it would be better
to have spacial variations to determn ne whether or
not, say, that the west side is going to inpact the
west side groundwater as opposed to what overall or
a conbi nation of all the |eachate would | ook |ike.

Ceneral Iy, whenever |eachate is
collected, it is collected in one tank. Before
that tank can go off for treatnment it must be
nmoni tored for the specific hazardous
characteristics. So that |eachate tank is also

monitored in addition to these nonitoring | ocations
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within the unit itself.

MR RAO Ckay. When you talk about this
nmoni toring of |eachate in the tank, is that
required by the rules, or is that sonething that an
operator does to nake sure that the treatnment neets
t he requirenents?

M5. MUNIE: Testing the | eachate before
it goes to a treatnent facility is required by the
treatment facility itself. It is required that
they do not send hazardous | eachate off-site.
Therefore, they nust test and nmonitor the | eachate
that is being sent off-site to determ ne whether or
not it is hazardous.

MR, RAO In Subsection (g)(1l) the
proposed anendnent all ows the Agency to require
addi ti onal |eachate sanpling as necessary to ensure
conpliance with the Act and Subtitle (g). Could
you identify the specific requirenments under the
Act or regulations pertaining to | eachate sanpling
fromlandfills?

M5. MUNTE: W don't believe that there
is additional |eachate sanpling in the Act. Wat
we are getting at there is ensuring conpliance wth

the Act that this new line would all ow the Agency

20
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to add additional |eachate nonitoring to ensure
that the | eachate that is discharged fromthe unit
does not cause a violation of the Act. It is not
that there is additional |eachate nonitoring
requirenents in the Act that this subsection is
trying to make them nonitor for.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: | have a
foll owup question on that, along the sane |ines.
That sentence says that the Agency may, by permt
conditions, require additional |eachate sanpling.
I am assum ng that the Agency woul d make t hat
determ nati on pursuant to its pernmtting process
and its permitting authority. 1Is that correct?

M5. MINNE: dearly, it would be part of
the permt application. W would envision that
t hese additional sanpling requirenments would cone
about because we found a groundwater problem or
there was a hit in the groundwater where we wanted
to determ ne whether or not it was actually com ng
fromthe unit itself.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  Ckay.

MR, RAO | have one nore question on the
same subsection. Subsection (g)(1l) requires

| eachate to be tested in accordance with

21
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subsections (g)(2)(Q, and (g)(3)(D).

Under what circunstances woul d | eachate
sanpl es be tested for paraneters listed in
subsections (g)(2)(A) through (9)(2)(F) and
(9) (3)(A) through (g)(3)(Q7?

M5. MUNIE: Once | eachate conmes out of
the unit and it is going for treatnment or
pretreatnment, these are standard constituents that
you would nonitor for that would be specific for
that treatnment plant. These are constituents that
are inmportant in a biological treatnent of
| eachat e.

Wereas, the leachate that is within the
unit itself only needs to be nonitored for the
groundwat er constituents, because those are the
paranmeters that you are |ooking for to indicate
whet her there was a groundwater concern

MR, RAO So the proposed anmendnent as to
what is going to be tested within the unit and what
woul d be tested when the | eachate is being disposed
after treatnment, is that what you are saying?

M5. MUNIE: Yes. The change that we make
to the | eachate nonitoring section in (g)(1) are

really changes to what is nonitored within the unit

22
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itself. \Whereas, we made no changes to the
Subsection (2) and (3) of the Subsection (g), and
those are the constituents that are nonitored prior
to treatnment and pretreatnent.

MR, RAO Ckay. | have one nore question
on 811. 309.

The proposed changes to the | eachate
nmoni toring that are applicable to both putrescible
waste and chemical waste landfills. Should the
changes al so apply to steel and foundry waste
landfills under Part 817, since such landfills are
al so a subset of chem cal waste |andfills? Because
t he requi renents which are based on these 811
requi renents --

M5. MUINTE: | will be perfectly honestly
with you. W did not | ook at the 817 requirenents
in regard to these particular provisions. But,
yes, clearly, they could also go to the 817 units,
because those units are simlar to chem cal and
putrescible in that if the constituents in | eachate
are hi gh enough they becane chenical and
putresci ble waste landfills. So if the Board chose
to, these would be appropriate changes to 817.

MR, BAKOABKI : My | say sonet hing? |
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thi nk we have to kind of | ook at that thoroughly,
t hough, because | think the steel and foundry
landfills are nore honbgenous than these types of
landfills. So you m ght have to have a provision
where you coul d address that factor.

MR. RAO The reason | ask you is, you
know, the steel and foundry waste landfills right
now have the quarterly sanpling and, you know, it
is simlar to what was in the existing Part 811
Since we are relaxing these rules, | want to know
what the Agency thinks about the steel and foundry
chem cal waste landfills.

MR, BAKOABKI: Specifically, | don't
think the steel and foundry -- | don't know how
many are nmenbers of -- how many are nenbers of the
NSWWVA. They really haven't been a part of that.

t hi nk we woul d need sone direct discussions with
themto think about proposing any changes t hat
effect them They are kind of a separate group
that work on their own rules with their own set of
constituents.

MR RAO  Yes, | know about the
organi zati on and everything, but in ternms of the

landfill itself | just wanted to get your feedback
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since we have a docket open in the steel and
foundry waste landfills, also. | just thought
maybe you coul d address --

MR, BAKOWBKI: | am sorry?

MR, RAO W have ongoi ng rul emaking in
steel foundry landfills, too.

MR BAKOABKI : Oh, okay.

MR RAO Ckay. Moving on to Section
811. 310. In Subsection (d)(1)(C the proposed
anendment recomends that we elimnate nonitoring
of nitrogen fromlandfill gas. |In the testinony
supporting the change it says that there was no

reason for nonitoring nitrogen.

I have | ooked at the justification in the

Board's final opinion in Docket R88-7, and it
states that nitrogen should be nonitored as an
i ndi cator of air |eaks which can aid in the
interpretation of the validity of the sanple and
integrity of the nonitoring devices.

Since the proposed anendnment Section
(d)(1)(C elimnates the requirenment to nonitor
nitrogen, what will be used as an alternative
i ndicator of air leaks in the systen?

MR, HI LBERT: Well, you could stil
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determ ne nitrogen concentrations, assumng the
mass bal ance approach, you know, if nitrogen was a
conmponent of the gas you were sanpling and you had
tested all the other conponents, then the remaining
fraction woul d be the nitrogen.

MR. RAO The air |eaks were supposed to
be -- you know, in ternms of you neasure for
nitrogen and then you do the mass bal ance and see
if it matches up. If it does not, then that is an
indication of an air leak. And so if you are
proposing that we elimnate nitrogen, there is no
way of elimnating air leaks in the system

MR, HI LBERT: The general idea was not to
specifically elimnate nitrogen. It was to
elimnate specific testing for nitrogen. Because
that test requires that the sanples be sent to an
analytic lab, and it is not readily done in the
field. That is an additional expense that is
really not necessary, because the mass bal ance
approach is pretty foolproof. It is pretty
consi stent.

M5. MUINTE: Also, the point you are
trying to get at here is air leaks within a

control |l ed system where you are actually getting --
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you are pulling the nmethane out of the landfill.
The provision here is tal king about bel ow ground
nmoni tori ng devi ces, which are all devices where you
pl ace a nonitoring device into the ground, and you
are just nonitoring the constituents there. It is
not in a closed system

If you are in a closed systemand you are
monitoring -- specifically nonitoring for nitrogen
you are going to see whether you have any air |eaks
there. This is not a closed systemthat we are
nmoni toring. These are just the air nonitoring
devices that are within the ground itself.

So for the nmonitoring of the landfil
itself, doing a direct neasurenent of nitrogen
seens excessive because you have got -- you have to
send those particular sanples off to a lab. You
are not getting any direct neasurenments on the day
that you are nmonitoring it. It is also a very
expensi ve test and for a non encl osed system it
just seemed excessive to us.

MR, RAO Ckay. Then noving on to

Section 811. 312, under Subsection (g)(1), a

landfill gas processing facility which is permtted
to receive and process landfill gas under the Act
27
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and Board regul ations is considered -- is not
considered as part of the facility under the
proposed anendnents.

Under what provisions of the Act and/or
Board regul ations are the landfill gas processing
facilities required to obtain permts?

M5. MUNIE:  You nmean fromthe Agency?

MR RAO  Yes.

M5. MUNIE:  Under the Bureau of Air
permtting requirenents.

MR, RAO | was asking you what
provi sions of the Act or Board regul ations are
landfill gas processing facilities required to
obtain permts? Because it says in the Board
regul ati ons and the Act.

M5. MUNIE: You are |ooking for the
specific regul ations and --

MR RAO  Yes.

M5. MUINIE: -- provisions in the Act?

MR RAO If you don't have it, you can
provide it in the comrents.

M5. MUNNE: We will provide that in the
comrent s.

MR, BAKOABKI :  You just need the
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citation?

MR, RAO Yes. Thank you.

MR BAKOABKI :  Ckay.

MR RAO Are all landfill gas processing
facilities required to have a permt to receive and
process landfill gas?

M5. MUNIE: Could you ask that question
agai n?

MR RAO Are all landfill gas processing
facilities required to have a permt to receive and
process landfill gas?

M5. MUNFE: We will provide that in our
comrents, our written responses.

MR RAO Ckay. In the case of a
permtted off-site gas processing facility, would
the operator of the landfill, from which the
facility receives landfill gas, have any control
over the processing systemto ensure that an
adequat e system for gas disposal is always
accessi bl e and avail abl e?

MR, HI LBERT: The way that that has been
anended, it still requires the landfill facility to
mai ntai n financial assurance for the landfill gas

control neasures that would be required. Just
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because you have entered into a contract with a
third party or sone other entity to utilize your
gas and nmaintain the control systens on the
[andfill, that does not relieve you fromthe
financial burden to always have sonething there in
case they default it. So that -- | nean, there is
still protection to ensure that that could be done
if this third party no | onger existed.

MR, RAO Actually, I was nore interested

i n knowi ng about during the operation of the

landfill, you know, if there is a buil dup of
landfill gas or sone dangerous situation occurs,
will this off-site gas processing facility, will it

be al ways avail abl e and accessible to the operator
to make sure that, you know, the safety concerns
are addressed?

If not, do you believe the alternative
backup system nust be available to the operator
like, you know, flares or sonething of that sort,
in the event that the off-site facility is not
avai |l abl e for some reason?

MR H LBERT: It is ny understanding that

that would still be the requirenment. | nean, the
landfills are still required to satisfy the other
30
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portions of the regulations. So that if there was
a problemw th excessive gas, let's say your ful
ground noni toring devices, and sone ot her

i ndication that the landfill gas was not under
control, the landfill would still have to nake
what ever or do whatever requirenents are necessary
to control the landfill gas. | nean, even if he
didn't have sone kind of working relationship with
this third party he would still be responsible for
ensuring that the public health and safety was
protected and the environnental issues were

pr ot ect ed.

MR RAO Is there anything in the rules
that require the operator to do that?

MR H LBERT: Yes. This doesn't anend
ot her sections of 811 that require -- | don't know
the specific references here, but this is really
geared towards off-site processing facilities, so
that they are not considered a part of the
landfill. | mnmean, it would allow easier access for
peopl e entering the contracts with utilities, other
entities that want to utilize the gas that they
have avail abl e, but --

MR, RAO The reason | ask this question
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was when this rule was adopted in Docket 88-7, a
simlar thing was proposed and was not accepted by
the Board, and at that time, you know, as an
alternative you can have backup systens to be
contingencies if you want to. You can take a | ook
at the Board's opinions and get back to us on that.

M5. MUNIE: But just because a landfill
facility has, as part of its permt, this off-site
processing facility, that does not ensure that they
have any real control on whether or not that
off-site processing facility continues to operate.
That off-site processing facility, although stil
permtted under the landfill's permt, it could
choose to shut down.

MR RAO That's the reason | asked if
there is a need for backup options if it decided to
shut down for sonme reason

M5. MUNTE: That is what | am saying.
That is the way it is now Wthout any changes to
the Act as it is right now, the regs, as they are
witten, even though the landfill has a permt for
this off-site facility, they have no real control
over it.

MR. RAO Because if it is 50 percent
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over -- if it is 50 percent or nore, the l[andfill
gas right nowis considered part of the facility
and the operator will have control over the
facility.

M5. MUNIE: But just because --

MR, RAO Under the existing rules.

M5. MUNIE: Under the existing rules it
is required to be permtted as part of the landfill
facility. That does not ensure that the operator
has any control over the facility, the processing
facility.

MR RAO Ckay. But still, you know,
there is concern about what happens in terns of,
you know, if there is a shutdown a or breakdown or
anyt hi ng of that sort.

M5. MUINIE: Sure. W will be glad to go
t hrough the Board's original reasoning in the R88-7
and respond further.

MR. RAO Because the operator has
control over the --

MS. MUNIE:  Sure.

MR RAO -- facility.

M5. MUNIE: We understand that, and we

will be glad to respond further in our witten
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comrent s.

MR, RAO Ckay. Then noving on to
811. 319. Under 811.319, Subsection (a)(1)(A), the
anendnments require certification described in 35
[Ilinois Adnministrative Code 813.304(b) take into
consi deration the |l evels of the nonitored
constituents within the --

MR, VAN NESS: Could you repeat that?

MR, RAO Under (a)(1)(A), the
certification required under 811 -- it is not 811
Under 813.304(b), does it take into consideration
that the levels of the nonitored constituents
shoul d be within the zone of attenuation or just at
the edge of the unit?

(Chai rman Manning exited the
heari ng room)

MR, HILBERT: If | understand your
qguestion right, the certification in 304(b), you
are questioning if it -- I mean, what real mdoes it
enconpass?

MR RAO  Yes.

MR, HI LBERT: If | understand 304(b), and
| amdoing this fromnenory, that is just basically

certifying that nothing has changed fromthe
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original groundwater inpact assessment that was
conpleted for the facility, if I amcorrect. And

t hat woul d enconpass -- actually, when you are
preparing groundwater inpact assessnments, you are

| ooking at not only the waste footprint, the zone
of attenuation, point of conpliance, but you are

al so 1 ooking at the type of geol ogy outside of that
regi on, because you need to understand groundwat er
flow directions, background groundwater quality and
ot her issues.

So, yes, it covers the waste footprint,
the zone of attenuation, the point of conpliance,
but it also covers sone site-specific areas outside
of that boundary that are unique to each site when
you prepare your groundwater inpact assessnent.

MR. RAO So the certification involves
nmore than just, you know, denonstrating that the
nmoni toring constituents nmeet all the MAPCs within
the zone of attenuation?

You have two options in your proposed
amendnent, and one is the certification or an
operator could just denonstrate, you know, the
groundwater within the zone of attenuation neets

t he MAPC?
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MR LISS: | guess | need to know if you
are asking how we plan to do it in the regulatory
framework as opposed to how the operator --

MR RAO | was |looking at this and
basically the certification where no data is
provided to the Agency you coul d see whet her they
neet the levels so --

MR LISS: Well, you have to --

MR RAO Mnitoring, would it be nore
appropriate to just go with the nonitoring data to
show whet her they neet the MAPCs or not?

MR LISS: Al right. | amready to
answer. You have to read that with part of (a).
You said that first that doesn't require the
subm ttal of any data. Basically it is
certification.

Under (a) there is some criteria listed
here, one through five, and that if any of these
t hi ngs occur that, obviously, they can't neet (b).
That's a conpliance issue, first of all, whether or
not they have told us if any of these things have
or have not occurred. That's a conpliance issue
there. W have reviews, file reviews, and tracking

t hese things that happen.
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So assunming that they neet (b), no, they
woul d not submit anything different for that, but
with the data that we get throughout the year, the
data that cones in quarterly, we easily would be
able to verify that, and that's what we plan to
do. We don't want all that data resubmitted under
(b) because we already have it.

MR RAO Ckay. You are still going to
| ook at the data that you review with the
conpl i ance?

MR LISS: Yes. At the first part | was
alittle confused. | think you were getting at
what if the MAPC is found to be exceeded?

MR RAO Yes. M concern was you have
two options here. One is the certification which
just states, you know, the original groundwater
i npact assessnent still applies, or an operator
could denonstrate that they neet all MAPCs within
the zone of attenuation. So I was |ooking at those
two options and I was asking you, you know, in a
detection nmonitoring, would you rather have a
denonstration or a certification

MR LISS: It is in the context of a

renewal , and for that we already have the data. |
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woul d rather -- we prefer the way it is witten as
a certification.

MR RAO  Ckay.

MR LISS: But there mght be -- the
alternate serves as two functions. One, that they
coul d have exceedance of MAPC at the tine and when
they submit that we are going to | ook at that.
There is other triggering mechanisns that are
required by the rules for the eval uation of
groundwat er data and al so put into the permt when
we issue that we would al ready know that they
reported that to us under the assessnent being
triggered into assessnent.

VWhen the renewal cones up, it could be
that a facility can't make this but they were
triggered into assessment. | amsure at that point
they would give us that information and show us
t hat basically going through the adnministrative
functions of responding to an assessment and the
MAPC coul d, at that point, be an analytical error
a fal se-positive, and then maybe we would rely on
the assessnent data and still probably allow them
with the certification in (b) to go to the

nmoni toring. Does that answer your question?
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MR RAO It kind of clears it up, yes.

MS. LISS: kay.

MR, RAO Under 811.319 (a)(1)(A), if the
groundwat er nonitoring results indicate that the
monitored unit constitutes a threat to groundwater,
woul d the nonitoring frequency revert back to a
quarterly interval ?

MR, BAKOABKI : Can you repeat that,
pl ease?

MR RAO Yes. |If the groundwater
monitoring results indicate that the nonitored unit
constitutes a threat to groundwater, would the
nmoni toring frequency revert back to quarterly
i nterval s?

MR LISS: W have that technical data
that would trigger an assessnent, and under
assessnment nmonitoring we would still have increased
nmoni tori ng which could be quarterly or sone other
frequency that we nmaintain that nonitoring at that
frequency until such tinme it was cleared up or it
went to corrective action.

MR RAO Cxay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: | have a

general question, as well. 1In Section 813.501
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there is a requirenment having to do with a
nmodi fication that is nonsignificant and --

MS. MUNFE: Do you nean 103?

MR, BAKOABKI : 501 is annual reports.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TIPSORD: | am sorry.

Yes, 813.103. The provision would allow the Agency
30 days to review that nodification, and there is a
possibility that -- in fact, it says the Agency's
deci si on deadline date shall be stated as
determned -- as of the date of such witten notice
the Agency's determnation date -- ny question is
having to do with the possibility that this 30 days
could extend the Agency's 180 day decisi on deadline
or 90 day decision deadline assessed in the
statute. And, in fact, | believe that M. Bakowski
and M. Hilbert both referred to the fact that if
this nodification came in the last 30 days it

could, in fact, extend that tine.

My general question is since the statute
sets your deadline at 90 or 180 days, and nost
woul d be 180 days in this context, what is your
authority for extending that time, or do you see
that as, in fact, extending the statutory tinme?

MR, BAKOABKI :  No, our understanding is
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that that nodification is -- it nmakes it a new
application. So that tinme starts over again.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Even a
nodi fication that is not significant?

MR, BAKOABKI: By the wording in this
rule we intended that to nmean that even an
insignificant nodification is -- makes it a new
application. For exanple, in the conposting rules,
any nodification at all, no matter what, it defines
that in the rules that that nmakes it a new
application. So we paralleled that. dearly,
right now significant nodifications nake it a new
application. W wanted to add m nor nodifications.

HEARI NG CFFI CER TI PSORD:  So any
nodi fication woul d be considered a new application
and start the time frane over again?

MR, BAKOABKI: Right. And then by rule
we have a new deadline to decide simlar. R ght
now operating permts under 807, there is a
provi sion where we have to do themwithin 45 days
even though there is no statutory deadli ne.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Yes, M. Van
Ness?

MR, VAN NESS: | amgoing to junp in here
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even though this isn't, per se, an issue that is
terribly near and dear to the NSWWA' s heart, per
say. W viewthis as nore of a holding type
provision. It is not necessarily one that nesses
with the statute. Wiat we see this is is a safe
haven for the Agency and the applicant to basically
arrive at the decision as to whether this is or is
not a sig nod in the first place.

If the decision is that it is not, you
will notice that the way that this section is
worded that the clock then picks up where it left
of f subject to this possible 30-day unbrella
peri od, which to the extent possible is tucked
within the existing statutory deadline. Only when
you get to that eleventh hour change, when the
Agency desperately needs the ability to make the
decision, is this or is this not a sig nod, that
this extension cones into play. We view it nore as
a holding while that decision is nade. Once that
decision is made, then the clock is back on

But | don't think that this poses a
statutory construction problem JCAR may have a
di sagreenment with us on that. | think a fair

reading of the statute is alnost to the doctrine of
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necessity. At some point in tine the Agency sinply
must have the time to nmake the determ nations to go
t hrough the data submitted to it before naking
deci si ons.

The alternative is satisfactory to both
the Agency and to the regulated comunity, which
woul d be the Agency woul d have to nmaybe either
al l ow sonething to pass that m ght or mght not
qualify the sig nod or, alternatively, reject the
permt, start the clock over again, sinply to
preserve the statutory tine limts. That seens to
be a trenendous waste of adm nistrative resources.
So | guess | amkind of invoking a doctrine of
necessity in ternms of providing the Agency the tine
it clearly needs.

MR RAO | have a clarification question
for the Agency. Does the Agency make the
determ nati on whether the nodification is a
significant nodification or -- | don't know what --

VR, BAKOWBKI :  Yes. Wienever a
nodi fication cones in we have to because it effects
our deci sion.

MR. RAO That would be in accordance

with the definition of a significant nodification?
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MR BAKOABKI : Right.

MS. MUNIE:  Yes.

VR, BAKOWSKI : The current definition of
significant nodification was really contenplated in
the context of an operating permt, not an
application that is not really there yet. W
rather themreally just rewite the definition of
significant nodification. W thought we would do
it by calling it a nonsignificant or sone ot her
ki nd.

MR RAO Cxay.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: So to make
clear, then, what you envision is that this would
hol d the deci sion deadline, for exanple, if it cane
in on the 135th day or the 150th day that you would
hold for 30 days that decision deadline and then
kick it back in once you decided what this was and
say it is a nonsignificant nodification you would
start over and the Agency woul d have anot her 25
days then to make it's decision after that initial
30 so it would add --

MR, BAKOABKI: Let's say if it cane in on
the 170th day, okay, and we considered it at a

mnimmit would go to 200 because you have got 170
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plus 30. GCkay. |If it was significant, then you
woul d have 170 plus 180, whatever that is.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Therein lies ny
guestion. You are, then extending the decision
deadl i ne.

MR, BAKOABKI : No. Right now when a
significant nodification cones in on day 170 it
goes to 180.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: | under stand
that, M. Bakowski. But if it is a significant
nodi fication you view that as a new application you
start the clock over for another 180 days. What
you are doing now is saying that we get 30 days to
decide if it is a significant nodification

MR, BAKOABKI : No, not necessarily,
because it has to be either a mnor or a
significant, okay. So by the regulatory | anguage
you are naking it a nodification

HEARI NG OFFI CER TIPSORD:  If | nodify ny
permt on the 170th day, you have now anot her 30
days, so you are getting another 20 days beyond the
statutory 180 days to nake the decision

MR, BAKOABKI : No, what | amsaying is we

have a new application which is the result of a
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m nor nodification and we have 30 days to review
that. And you could extend -- like, you could
extend it -- it is a new application so statutorily
we have 180 days but through negotiations with
NSWVA, we decide that those we are going to turn
in -- have the rule establish a 30 day deadline
simlar to 807 operating permts that are right now
45 days even though there is no statutory deadline
for 45 days. See, | think the Board can establish
a shorter tine than the statutory time frame and
that's what we are proposing here, is to establish
a shorter tine frame rather than doing it simlar
to the conposting applications where we said any
change is a new one and starts the statutory tine
frane over. This does start the statutory tine
franme over, but by rule you are naking it shorter.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TIPSORD:  But if it comes
in on the 145th day, it doesn't start the statutory
time frame over.

MR, BAKOWBKI : Any nodification starts
the statutory tine frame over but the Board is --

HEARI NG OFFI CER Tl PSORD: Ckay, but now
you just by saying that you just trapped yourself

into the -- if they bring in sonething on day one,
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and they nodified it day two, you only have 30 days
to approve or di sapprove the application

MR, BAKOABKI : Good point. | think we
can -- if that's your issue, | think we want to
address that and clarify that. W wll never
shorten that original one.

MR VAN NESS: If | could clarify that,
Madam Hearing officer, | wasn't sure if | was
getting your point either. Now !l think I am |
want to nake sure so we want to respond to that.

If | understand correctly, your concern is that the
addi ti onal 30 days might end up coming in addition
to the subsequent 180 days if we should determ ne
that this was indeed a significant nodification

Is that correct? Do | understand that right.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: M concern is
that you are creating a whole new --

MR, VAN NESS: 210 days.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: -- perrmutation
year that triggers -- really becones a concern to
me when you get beyond that 150 days. And what you
are saying is if it cones in any tinme before the
150 days it has no effect -- unless it becones a

significant nodification, it has no effect on the
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180 days, but if it comes in on the 151st day, then
it becones the new application but only if it comes
in on the 151st day. | see sone real |egal issues
with that. | would like to see sone di scussion or
some expl anation on that. You see what | am

sayi ng.

M5. DYER | think this is a legal issue
and it would involve construing the statute. 1 see
your point and | think that we would have to
interpret final action but maybe we shoul d respond
in our comrents.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TIPSORD: | think that is
probably a good idea to see sone | egal discussion
onit. | think at a mninmmwe need to include
sonmething in the Board' s opinion clarifying this.

Were there any questions from anyone in
t he audi ence?

Seeing none, are there anynore fromthe
Boar d?

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: | have sone
guesti ons considering new section 813.504. That's
on page 64 of the proposal. This section concerns
an annual report that is supposedly to be kept at

or near the facility for inspection by Agency
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personnel pursuant to | think it is section before
813.503. If the Agency desired to have a copy of
this annual report, would a copy be nmade avail abl e
to the Agency?

M5. MUNIE: The information in the annua
report itself would be avail able for anyone to
i nspect at the facility itself including the Agency
to inspect at the facility.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: Wl |, now, when you

say "anyone," does that include a nmenber of the
public?

M5. MUINTE: As part of the operating
record, yes, it would be. This is all information
that is required in the operating record, and
that's avail abl e to anyone.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD:  So if a nenber of
the local Sierra Club, just to take an exanple,
desired to come in during normal working hours and
i nspect these annual reports that woul d be nade
avai l able to that person?

M5. MUNTE: At a municipal solid waste
landfill, that's the kicker. Yes, 811.112 all of

the information that is required to be conbi ned and

kept in the annual report is also required under
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811. 112 for the record keeper requirenments for
muni ci pal solid waste landfills. So municipa
solid waste landfills, yes, it would be avail able
to anyone. Legally I amnot sure whether anyone
can go on any other site and ask for their annua
report, like chem cal waste landfills. To answer
your question, we don't believe it would be
avai | abl e to anyone except for municipal solid
waste |andfills.

MR VAN NESS: We will look into that.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD:  You see only that
one class of landfill having that annual report
avai l abl e to nmenbers of the public?

M5. MUINIE: | believe that's probably

true.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: But it is available

to the Agency?

M5. MUNTE: It is available to the
Agency, yes.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: So it is public
i nformation?

M5. MUNTE: It is available for the
Agency to see. It is not -- we do not have a

requirenent in here that allows us to require that
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they submit it to us.

MR RAO But nost of the information
that is listed here the Agency does get that
i nformati on under other requirenents or rules?

MR BAKOABKI : Ri ght.

MS. MUNIE:  Yes.

MR RAO O her information can be
avail able to the public?

M5. MUINIE: Right. The public would have
to go through our files. It is not available at
one report within our files but the information
itself is.

MR, BAKOABKI :  Under a FO A request they
could specifically list all these docunents and
obtain themthrough the Freedom of Information Act.

MR, HI LBERT: They can FO A all the
conmponents of 504 separately fromthe Agency.

MS. MUNIE:  Yes.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: | understand that
this annual report is basically a conpilation of
quarterly groundwater nonitoring reports and ot her
data which comes to the Agency and which woul d be
avai l abl e at the Agency for inspection, but

certainly it is put together in a different way and
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there are sonme itens that, you know, nay possibly
be of interest to the public, and I was j ust
wondering if the public then went to the Agency and
FA Aed the annual report for facilities which were
not municipal solid waste landfills may not be
avai | abl e under statute or regul ation, would the
Agency have to go to that facility to get a copy
and then supply it to the public? It seens like --

MR, BAKOABKI: | am | ooking at ny
attorneys here, but if has not been submtted to
the Agency and get a request for it under FAOA, |
don't think we are obligated to go out and get it.
The way this is set up, they have to keep it at the
facility and not submt it to us. If we have a
FO A request for that, we have -- it would not be a
state record at that tine.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD:  So then as one
consequence of this not being subnmitted to the
Agency, it is hidden fromthe public?

M5. MUNTE: Conpiling in this manner it
could be considered hidden fromthe public. The
i nformation would be available in our files and
woul d be available to the public but conpiled in

t he manner of annual reports, | don't believe it is
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avail able to the public.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: Well, so the
guestion | have then is, why doesn't the Agency
just get a copy of this annual report? |
understand you are trying to cut down on paperwork
and storing paper docunents but nowadays, | mean,
you could get a conputer disk of this annual report
once a year and it would be very easy to store and
woul dn't have these questions about whether or not
it is a available for the public because it would
be -- | see it as public information.

MR VAN NESS: If | may, | suppose we
could address it in our subsequent witten remarKks,
but I think the question, again, is not public
information. The issue is the format, it seens to
me. Qur thesis has been in this all of the
information that is conpiled in the annual report
is already submitted on a far nore current basis
four times a year in the quarterly reports. So the
loss is of format. | amnot sure that there is any
public right to format. There certainly is a
public right to information, but our thesis is that
the information is in there. |f sonmeone wanted to

submt a FO A request asking for the |ast four
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quarterly reports, they have the net effect -- they
have, in effect, | suppose a running annual report
that is probably nore current than what they would
be able to get otherwise. |If | submt a request
today for the nost recent annual report | am
getting information that is 9 nonths old. On the
other hand, if | submt a request today for the

| ast four quarterly reports, | have information
that is not nore than three nonths stale. It is
far nmore current. It may not be set out in the
exact sanme format. Frankly, | amnot sure whet her
one format is superior to the other for the purpose
of some nmenber of the public, but it occurs to ne
that if the data is there the information is there
and the public interest is served in either

respect, in either way. There is certainly nothing
in the statute that says that the public has a
right to information in a specific format as | ong
as the information is understandable and

available. So I think we need to understand what
the issue here is strictly format and not the
availability of information. Nevertheless, we wll
be happy to submt the witten response to you and

ki nd of discuss that issue. Perhaps we can |ay out
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what the formatting differences are and address
t hose.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: Thank you for your
comments. | appreciate your concerns in trying to
reduce paperwork, and | agree that the data will be
avai l abl e at the Agency in different forns than,
say, quarterly, biannual reports. However, | also
see evaluation of data here. | think that goes
beyond just having data available. There is |ot of
data out there but, quite frankly, it is hard to
eval uate that data many tinmes which determ nes what
people think is going on. So that is sonething
that we need to | ook at and hopefully you will
address in the comments, is whether or not the
eval uation of the data is still going to be there
for the public. Because it is the evaluation that
determ nes how that data is a used, how that data
is viewed, and what value is placed on that data.
So it is not just a matter of having the data in a
formavailable. It is a matter of how that data is

eval uat ed, which needs to be available to the

publi c.
MR, VAN NESS: | think | would agree with
that. You know, | have been working on the prem se
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that the data is usable in either format. But |
think we do need to go back and address that and
see if there is information that becones difficult
to the point of material concern as to whether a
menber of the public is interested m ght get | ost
goi ng through the quarterly data and not have the
ability to anal yze or evaluate what is in front of
them | think that's a legitimte issue that we
can di scuss and supply to the Board in witing.

BOARD MEMBER G RARD: Thank you.

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD: Let's go off
the record for a second.

(Di scussion off the record.)

HEARI NG OFFI CER TI PSORD:  Back on the
record.

W& have a second hearing scheduled in
this proceeding for Novenber 19th in Chicago at
Room 11-504, | think it is. It is the Board's
conference room W are trying to check into
getting a | arger room al t hough that may not be
necessary. |If we do change it, it will be posted
at the desk at 11-500, so you will be able to find
it fairly easily.

W have set Novenber -- after the
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di scussion off the record we deci ded that Novenber
12th will be the deadline for prefiling testinony.
That is in the Board's office on Novenber 12th.
Then we can proceed on the 19th. After the hearing
on the 19th we can discuss how best the proponents
see the proceeding going as far as the fina
coment and all of that should cone in, fina
first -- pre first coomments. W have first notice
at this time and also as a point | have noticed in
goi ng through this there are some typographica
style errors sonme references to paragraphs,
subsections and things like that. If you would
like to take a | ook at those and present an errata
sheet it would be helpful to the Board. | found
some, but it is always hel pful to have nore eyes on
t hose ki nds of things.

Was there anyone el se here who wanted to
testify today or say anything on the record?

Al right. Seeing nothing, | think that
pretty nmuch concl udes the business for today.
think you all very nuch. It has been a very
productive hearing. | look forward to nore conment
and seeing you on the 19th. This hearing is

cl osed.
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STATE OF ILLINO'S )
) SS
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY)

CERTI FI CATE

I, DARLENE M N EMEYER, a Notary Public
in and for the County of Mntgonery, State of
I1linois, DO HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing 57
pages conprise a true, conplete and correct
transcript of the proceedings held on the 27th of
Cctober A.D., 1997, at the Illinois State Capitol
Bui | di ng, Room 400, Springfield, Illinois, in the
matter of: Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Rules:
Amendnents to 35 I1l1. Adm Code 811, 813, and 848,
i n proceedings held before the Honorable Marie
Ti psord, Hearing Oficer, and recorded in machine
short hand by ne.

I N WTNESS WHEREOF | have hereunto set ny
hand and affixed nmy Notarial Seal this 5th day of

Novenber A. D., 1997.

Not ary Public and
Certified Shorthand Reporter and
Regi st ered Prof essi onal Reporter

CSR License No. 084-003677
My Conmi ssion Expires: 03-02-99
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